
Crazy 2591 

Chapter 2591: Suspect (2) 

 

The atmosphere in the Special Investigation Group’s office became extremely tense. 

“””The driver’s name is Zhang Shixiong, and he’s 27 years old,”” Captain Shao said to Miao Ying.””He 

lives in the huijia community in Yunzhou’s pantao District. He’s an ambulance driver at chunjiang 

hospital, and has been working for five years! ” 

“””Before this, he was a nurse, and he basically had to deal with the hospital …”” ” 

“””Who else … Is there in the house?”” Miao Ying asked Captain Shao as she stared at the screen. ” 

“””Zhang Shixiong is an only son,”” Captain Shao said.””His parents are both teachers. His mother is in 

kindergarten and has already retired. My father is a school worker at an elementary school, and he’s still 

working …”” ” 

“””Tsk tsk …”” Cui Lizhu pinched her chin and commented,””it looks like a normal family!”” ” 

“””Team leader Miao,”” Captain Shao said,””before this, we had already investigated him, but we didn’t 

find any relationship between him and Zhang Qile!”” ” 

“””His surname is also Zhang,”” Miao Ying suddenly said.””Does he have any relationship with Zhang 

Shuai?”” ” 

“””This …”” Captain Shao’s face tightened, and he quickly said,””at present, we haven’t found any 

obvious connection, but … We’ll investigate it immediately!”” ” 

“””Not only do you need to check if he is related to Zhang Shuai,”” Miao Ying said.””You also need to 

check if any of his family or friends work in the police force, especially those who have access to the red 

bathtub’s file!”” ” 

“””I understand, I understand!”” Captain Shao took out his mobile phone.””I’ll send someone to check it 

immediately!”” ” 

“””Brother Tao,”” Miao Ying waved at Ran Tao again,””immediately send someone to investigate Zhang 

Shixiong’s movements after Zhang Qile disappeared. Find out where he went after he drove the 

ambulance back to the hospital.”” ” 

“””Yes!”” Ran Tao nodded and quickly went to give instructions. ” 

“At this time, Miao Ying saw that the interrogation of Zhang Shixiong had begun, so she waved at Zeng 

ke. ” 

“The voice on the big screen was immediately amplified, and Wu Xiumin asked Zhang Shixiong, ” 

“””You’re lying. You were the only one in the ambulance that night!”” Wu Xiumin pointed at the 

computer and said,””you took two minutes and twenty seconds to get through the two surveillance 



cameras, while other cars could have driven out in two minutes. It’s obvious that you stopped 

halfway!”” ” 

“””I … I don’t understand …”” The driver named Zhang Shixiong timidly argued,””I … Why would I stop 

the car?”” ” 

“””Officer, I know that I shouldn’t have lied. My two colleagues got out of the car after sending the 

patient off. They violated the rules, so they asked me not to tell anyone! ” 

“””We thought that it was just an ordinary investigation. If we had known that, we wouldn’t have lied!”” 

” 

“””Is that so?”” “”Did your female colleague really ask you not to tell anyone?”” Wu Xiumin asked. ” 

“””Mm … Yes … Yes? You … You can ask them. “” Zhang Shixiong quickly explained,””also, after I sent 

them off, I didn’t stop the car and went straight back to the hospital … ” 

“””You … You can check the hospital’s surveillance cameras …”” ” 

“””Then … What happens after you leave the hospital? What time did you leave the hospital, and where 

did you go after that?”” Wu Xiumin said, one sentence after another. ” 

“””I … I …”” Zhang Shixiong stammered for a long time before he answered,””I went home after I 

handed over the car! I’m really, really not lying!”” ” 

“””You said you went home?”” “”Where do you live?”” Wu Xiumin asked. ” 

“””I live at No. 151 Chenggong Road,”” Zhang Shixiong replied without thinking.””I really didn’t go 

anywhere. I went straight home from the hospital. You can check it out!”” ” 

“””Eh?”” ” 

“In the office, when Miao Ying heard the address, she made a sound of doubt, because the address was 

not quite the same as what was shown in the information. ” 

“””What? The path to success?”” Captain Shao’s reaction was obviously bigger.””The road to success is 

in the Zhaoyang District, which is quite far from the flat peach District! ” 

“””But … Chunjiang hospital …”” He tried to recall.””Chenggong Road is closer to chunjiang hospital, and 

… And … Aiya!”” ” 

“Suddenly, Captain Shao opened his eyes wide and said nervously,””””The path to success is near the 

house of the morning sun! No. 151 … No. 151, if I remember correctly … No. 151 should be in the 

residential area behind Chenyang residence … ” 

“””This … This can’t just be a coincidence, right?”” ” 

“Hearing this, Miao Ying quickly took the map and looked at it. The road to success was indeed not far 

from Chenyang residence. ” 

Could it be … 



“””Wu Xiumin, Wu Xiumin …”” Miao Ying quickly told Wu Xiumin about the latest situation through the 

communication device.””Can you ask him how he got back that night?”” ” 

“After receiving the notice, Wu Xiumin immediately asked Zhang Shixiong. ” 

“””I was driving. My license plate was XXXXX …”” Zhang Shixiong clarified again.””I was very tired that 

day. I fell asleep after I got home …”” ” 

“””Don’t you live in the flat peach District?”” Wu Xiumin asked. ” 

“””Oh, my parents live in the flat peach area, and I live in Chenggong Road,”” Zhang Shixiong said.””It’s 

my aunt’s house. My aunt passed away and had no children, so I lived in her house after I started 

working!”” ” 

“Wu Xiumin placed Zhang Qile’s photo on the table and asked,””do you really not know this woman?”” ” 

“””I … To be honest, I do find him a little familiar, but …”” Zhang Shixiong looked at the photo and 

said,””if I think about it carefully, I can’t remember. I don’t think I know him, right?”” ” 

“Hearing this, Miao Ying gave Zeng ke a look and ordered,””””Replay the video of him looking at the 

photo just now. There’s something wrong with his gaze …”” ” 

“Zeng was a skilled player, so he quickly replayed the scene as requested. ” 

“After the video was frozen, all the investigators in the office opened their eyes wide. ” 

“””He’s definitely not looking at the photo seriously!”” Cui Lizhu said,””even an unprofessional like me 

can see it! ” 

“””He’s avoiding his eyes. He definitely knows Zhang Qile! ” 

“This driver is too suspicious!”” ” 

“””You …”” When the camera turned to ask, Wu Xiumin weighed her words and said to Zhang 

Shixiong,””have you heard that something happened at Chenyang residence?”” ” 

“””Morning sun residence? “”Oh …”” Zhang Shixiong nodded.””I heard about it. It’s all over WeChat. The 

red bathtub has appeared, right?”” We’re very close, and many people are talking about it!”” ” 

“Wu Xiumin asked,””do you have any relatives who work in the police force?”” ” 

“””Police force? “”No, we don’t have any police officers at home, and we don’t have many relatives …”” 

Zhang Shixiong said.””My father has only one son for three generations, so I have four generations. My 

mother is also an only child. I only have one aunt!”” ” 

“””Your aunt … What does she do for a living?”” ” 

“””This … I don’t know. I think it’s an accountant or something?”” Zhang Shixiong said,””because my 

aunt had a rare, terminal illness, she was unmarried for life. She was all alone and died of illness in the 

end …”” ” 

“””He’s very nervous …”” In the office, Miao Ying noticed that Zhang Shixiong’s forehead was already 

covered in large beads of sweat. ” 



“The air conditioner in the interrogation room had been turned on in advance, so it should not be too 

hot. ” 

“Finally, Miao Ying pointed to Zhang Shixiong on the big screen and said,””Zeng ke, now I need to know 

everything about this person!”” ” 

“””If we want to know if he’s the red bathtub killer, we need to find out if he’s related to the red 

bathtub case from 40 years ago, as well as if he’s related to Zhang Qile …”” ” 

 

Chapter 2592: Chapter 2587-unremarkable cold case (2) 

 

Night. 

In a bar in Tokyo. 

The colorful lights were illusionary and the shadows were enchanting. 

“Masako Yangshan stretched her neck and looked around. She asked curiously,””””Your assistant is 

really a strange person. He just showed up and then suddenly disappeared. He’s so elusive!””” 

“””It doesn’t matter, just ignore him!”” Zhao Yu was enjoying the various enchanting scenes on the 

dance floor. He asked,””is the sister of Xin Jia from Ping Cheng really working in such a place?””” 

“””Yes, she is the youngest sister of Ping Cheng’s Xin Jia. Although they have the same father but 

different mothers, the two of them used to live together and have the closest relationship! “”Also,”” 

said Masako Yangshan,””her name is the same as mine, Masako of Ping Cheng …” 

“””As for whether she’s working here or not, there shouldn’t be any problem, right?”” Masako Yangshan 

looked around again and said,””I asked someone to find her. She’s now changed her stage name to’ Kim 

‘and she works here …””” 

“Then, she took out her phone and confirmed it with Zhao Yu.” 

“In the photo was a plain and quiet girl. Although she wasn’t very beautiful, she had an outstanding 

figure.” 

“””Your photo …”” Zhao Yu sighed.””How long ago was it?”” He’s still a kid, right?””” 

“””It’s okay, it’s okay …”” Masako said.””I didn’t work as a reporter for so many years for nothing. I’m 

the best at recognizing people. I’ll definitely be able to recognize you!””” 

She stood up and stopped a waiter. 

“After the two of them spoke in Japanese, Masako finally nodded in satisfaction and said to Zhao 

Yu,””””Don’t worry, we’re at the right place. We’re too early, and Kim hasn’t come to work yet! Let’s 

wait for a while!””” 

“Hearing this, Zhao Yu had no choice but to open the beer bottle and take a sip.” 



“As he drank, he habitually glanced at the invisible detector in his mind. So far, he had not found 

anything suspicious.” 

“From this, it seemed that the successor had no intention of using any tricks. He might really want Zhao 

Yu to solve this unsolved case!” 

Could it be that … This case is really very important to the successor? 

“If the case was solved, would he be able to find out the successor’s purpose or identity?” 

F * ck! 

Zhao Yu cursed in his heart and thought of a strange possibility. Could the successor be that Gu 

zhaoichiro? 

“However, he had seen with his own eyes that Gu zhaoichiro’s head had been blown up by Xi Wei in 

front of him. How could he have been resurrected?” 

Could it be that … That Gu zhaoichiro was a substitute? 

“Thinking of this, Zhao Yu wanted to ask Masako Yangshan, but on second thought, it was a difficult 

question to ask, so he held back.” 

“””Detective Zhao, don’t be too anxious,”” Masako Yangshan took a sip of her drink and said,””I’ve 

asked my friend to contact the police!” 

“””I told them that we were going to make a special program for this unsolved case, and the police 

would agree. We’ve worked together many times in the past!” 

“””When the time comes, with the police’s case records, we can start a full investigation. We can go to 

the investigators from back then, as well as the witnesses and the like …” 

“””Maybe we can find out who the suspects were?””” 

“””Yes, thank you!””” 

“””Thank you,”” Zhao Yu said. Just as he was about to take another sip of the wine, a tall, flirtatious-

looking woman suddenly sat down next to him.” 

“Immediately after, the woman made a few ambiguous gestures and spoke a lot of Japanese.” 

“Zhao Yu didn’t use a real-time translator, so he couldn’t understand what she was saying.” 

“However, Masako Yangshan’s eyes lit up. She pointed at the woman and said,””””Kimmi…You’re 

Kimmi…Right?””” 

“Zhao Yu took a look and realized that the woman was somewhat similar to Masako in the photo, but 

the woman was dressed like a forward guard and even had two lip rings on her lips.” 

“The lip ring was on both sides of the lips, looking like the teeth of a vampire.” 

“Hence, Zhao Yu quickly turned on the real-time translator and understood what she was saying.” 



“””I heard you were looking for me?”” “”Why?”” Kim asked.””I’ve never seen him before.”” Handsome, 

you can drink a lot, right? It’s very cheap to buy wine from me!””” 

“””Hello, Kim,”” Masako pointed at Zhao Yu and said,””this is officer Yu from the search Department, 

and I’m an editor for a TV show. We are here to … Um …””” 

“Before Masako could finish her introduction, Kim suddenly disappeared, leaving behind a 

dumbfounded Zhao Yu and Masako.” 

“Twenty-five seconds later, Zhao Yu and Masako arrived at the backstage of the bar in the direction 

where Kim had disappeared.” 

“Here, there were many people of all kinds shuttling through, making the narrow tunnel extremely 

crowded.” 

“””Kimmm…Kimm …”” Masako explained loudly,””we mean no harm. We’re here to ask you something 

… Hey…Baka …””” 

Masako was so angry that she started cursing when she saw that KIMM was nowhere to be seen. 

“Finally, when the two of them came to the door of a dressing room, the two men standing at the door 

immediately stepped forward and stopped them.” 

“””This isn’t a place for you to be, hurry up and leave …””” 

“Then, they pushed Zhao Yu.” 

“If it was in the past, Zhao Yu would have definitely fought back, but now Zhao Yu was more mature and 

steady.” 

“He immediately took out his wallet, grabbed a handful of US dollars, and threw them on the ground. 

The two men stopped talking and quickly bent down to pick them up. One of them was even lying on the 

ground …” 

Zhao Yu pushed open the dressing room’s door and rushed in with Masako. 

“After entering the house, he was greeted by screams. Many women were changing their clothes and 

putting on makeup, so when Zhao Yu entered, it caused quite a commotion.” 

“Zhao Yu had no choice but to do the same thing. He took out a handful of cash and threw it out. The 

screams immediately stopped, and no one was worried about Zhao Yu and Zhao Yu.” 

“However, something embarrassing happened. As soon as Zhao Yu scattered the money, Masako, who 

had been running away, suddenly appeared out of nowhere and also picked up the money!” 

“In fact, in order to pick up a big ticket, she even pushed down a few people in a rough manner …” 

“””Alright! “”Don’t pick it up,”” Zhao Yu stood in front of Masako and said in standard Japanese,””we 

just want to ask you something, not catch you!””” 

“””Yup!”” Masako Yangshan also explained,””we’re here to ask about your sister’s case. It has nothing to 

do with you …””” 



“””What? My sister?”” Masako put the money she picked up into her pocket and asked curiously,””is 

there any progress in my sister’s case?” 

“””Didn’t someone tell me that the prosecution period has passed? The police aren’t investigating 

anymore?””” 

“””Hmm …”” Masako looked around at the chaotic environment and said,””can we find a quiet place to 

talk?””” 

“””Alright, follow me!”” Masako of Ping Cheng snapped her fingers and led Zhao Yu and Su Yu to a place 

that looked like a dormitory behind the bar.” 

“There were six beds piled up in the small space, and all the beds were filled with women’s clothes.” 

“””I’m sorry, I thought you guys were here because of the watch incident!”” Masako lit a cigarette, then 

said to Zhao Yu,””police officer, I’ve never seen anyone throw money around in my life, and it’s in US 

dollars. You must be rich, right?” 

“””Do you want me to keep you company tonight?””” 

 

Chapter 2593: Suspect (Part 2) 

 

“””It’s too difficult for me!”” In the Special Investigation Group office, Ran Tao suddenly covered his face 

and said,””there must be something wrong with this Zhang Shixiong, but we can’t even find the most 

basic evidence!”” ” 

“””Tao, slow down,”” cui Lizhu said.””There are surveillance cameras in the hospital. What did you 

see?”” ” 

“””Zhang Shixiong is really a big suspect!”” Ran Tao pointed to the big screen and said,””on the night 

that Zhang Qile went missing, Zhang Shixiong drove the ambulance into a suspicious road section. ” 

“””At that time, the ambulance was the second car to enter the blind spot after Zhang Qile,”” Ran Tao 

thought for a moment, then said,””I think I’ll start from the beginning! Let’s start with the first car … ” 

“””After Zhang Qile entered the blind spot, the first car drove past in less than a minute! ” 

“””The family of three was in the car. They were talking and laughing in the car, so they didn’t notice 

Zhang Qile by the roadside … ” 

“””Now, we have ruled out this car as a suspect. ” 

“””Then, after another 30 seconds, Zhang Shixiong drove his ambulance into a blind spot …”” ” 

“””The third car entered five minutes later. From that car onwards, no one saw Zhang Qile! ” 

“””So, the ambulance is the biggest suspect!”” ” 



“””That’s right. The third bus was five minutes apart. Within these five minutes, Zhang Qile would have 

definitely called for a cab or called her friends for help. She didn’t call, which means that she has already 

been picked up!”” Cui Lizhu agreed. ” 

“””Let’s continue to watch Zhang Shixiong’s direction,”” Ran Tao said, switching the images.””After 

coming out of the blind spot, the ambulance went all the way to chunjiang hospital! ” 

“””We did some calculations. According to the ambulance’s previous speed, it would take about 

seventeen to twenty-one minutes to get from the blind spot to Spring River Hospital. ” 

“””But,”” Ran Tao said,””that day, Zhang Shixiong took 35 minutes to get to the hospital. There was 

obviously something wrong!”” ” 

“””He is indeed very suspicious, but … Is there something that doesn’t make sense?”” Cui Lizhu 

asked,””if an ambulance creaked to a stop next to him, would Zhang Qile take it without hesitation? ” 

“””Do you know Zhang Shixiong and Zhang Qile?”” ” 

“Hearing this question, everyone turned to look at Zeng ke, but Zeng ke shook his head and said,””””I 

haven’t found any obvious connection so far. I’m still investigating!”” ” 

“””They are two years apart, so they shouldn’t be classmates,”” Wu Xiumin analyzed.””But, their 

occupations seem to be quite different …”” ” 

“””Tao,”” Miao Ying said,””let’s continue! How’s the tracking going?”” ” 

“””Here comes the key question!”” Ran Tao said,””we checked the video from chunjiang hospital earlier, 

and it proves that Zhang Shixiong has returned to chunjiang hospital! ” 

“””Then, we continued to follow the hospital’s internal video and found that after Zhang Shixiong sent 

the ambulance back that night, he left the hospital in his own car and went home! ” 

“””Take note, he’s not lying. He drove his Ford grace back to the road of success. However, the road of 

success’s surveillance doesn’t cover the entire area. After entering, we can’t see his trace …”” ” 

“Then, Ran Tao pointed to the map and continued,””””Everyone, please look. This is No. 151 Chenggong 

Road, which is Zhang Shixiong’s home! ” 

“””This … Is the back door of morning sun residence! ” 

“””There are no surveillance cameras in this entire area! Ran Tao said,””if Zhang Shixiong had driven to 

the back door of Chenyang residence, he wouldn’t have been caught by the surveillance cameras!”” ” 

“””Wow … Isn’t this a little too calm?”” Cui Lizhu said,””let’s assume that Zhang Shixiong saw Zhang Qile 

alone on the road while driving the ambulance, and then he had an evil intention … ” 

“””Then, he stopped the ambulance in front of Zhang Qile and invited her to get in, and Zhang Qile got 

in! ” 

“””But, after she got in the car, Zhang Shixiong didn’t send her home, but to the hospital. Tsk tsk …”” Cui 

Lizhu frowned.””Zhang Qile is a living person!”” Will she be obedient?”” ” 



“””Tao,”” Miao Ying asked,””when Zhang Shixiong drove his car out of the hospital, was there anyone 

else in the car?”” ” 

“””No, I didn ‘t!”” Brother Tao nodded.””I’m very sure of that. The camera can see it very clearly. If they 

really brought someone, they could only be in the trunk …”” ” 

“””Zhang Shixiong drove the ambulance, so he naturally has first-aid knowledge,”” Wu Xiumin 

said.””Could there have been sedatives or something in the car? didn’t Zhang Shixiong arrive ten 

minutes later than usual?”” ” 

“””Could he have used the equipment or drugs in the ambulance to knock Zhang Qile out?”” ” 

“””But …”” Cui Lizhu reminded him,””there was a day between the two incidents. If Zhang Shixiong 

really kidnapped Zhang Qile, would he lock her up in his house?”” ” 

“””Sister Miao,”” Wu Xiumin nodded and said,””we should apply for a search warrant. The ambulance, 

Zhang Shixiong’s private car, and his home should all be searched!”” ” 

“””I understand, but …”” Miao Ying glanced at Zeng ke in the distance, then said,””we don’t have any 

evidence. So far, I’m afraid we can only apply for a search of the ambulance!”” ” 

“””It can’t be?”” “”The ambulance is in use every day,”” cui Lizhu said.””It’s carrying so many people 

every day. Even if there’s evidence, it’ll be difficult to search, right?”” ” 

“””Sister Miao!”” At this time, Zeng ke stood up and said,””I have checked Zhang Shixiong’s call and chat 

records, but there is no information about Zhang Qile!”” ” 

“””Also, I checked again, but I didn’t see any information about Zhang Shixiong in Zhang Qile’s address 

book. These two people don’t seem to be related! ” 

“””However, I’ve already sent people to investigate other channels. It will still take some time.”” ” 

“””Two years younger than Zhang Qile …”” Miao Ying mumbled.””That means Zhang Shixiong is 27 years 

old this year. Then … What about his marriage?”” You’re not married yet?”” ” 

“””No…”” Zeng ke said.””There is no marriage record!”” ” 

“””Team leader Miao,”” Captain Shao came in and said to Miao Ying,””the interrogation of the two 

nurses has ended!”” ” 

“””The two nurses claimed that they didn’t want to lie, but Zhang Shixiong persuaded them not to say 

that they got off the ambulance in advance, and they were punished.”” ” 

“””Oh?”” Everyone’s eyes lit up, and Miao Ying asked,””so, the two nurses were forced to lie?”” ” 

“””So …”” Cui Lizhu said,””Zhang Shixiong has a guilty conscience?”” ” 

“””Oh, and …”” Captain Shao said again,””the two nurses also revealed an important piece of news. 

Zhang Shixiong recently broke up with his girlfriend, and he’s in a particularly low mood …”” ” 

“””Oh?”” Miao Ying repeated,””broken up?”” ” 



“””It’s said that,”” Captain Shao said,””he broke up with his girlfriend of three years, and it was the girl 

who cheated on him. It was very embarrassing to break up with her!”” ” 

“””Then …”” Miao Ying immediately caught on to the main point.””Hurry up and find out more about his 

girlfriend …”” ” 

“””En!”” Captain Shao nodded.””I’ve already sent someone to investigate!”” ” 

“””Sister Miao,”” cui Lizhu urged excitedly,””since Zhang Shixiong lied, can we apply to search his 

house?”” ” 

“””I can’t wait to go to his house to take a look. Is this ambulance driver really the red bathtub killer?”” ” 

 

Chapter 2594: Chapter 2588-foreigner 

 

“””You guys can just call me KIMM! “”I’ve almost forgotten the name Masako,”” Masako said to Zhao Yu 

and Miao Ying in the bar dormitory.””My sister is a good person. She is very kind. She doesn’t even have 

enough to feed herself, but she often helps stray dogs and cats …”” ” 

“””How old were you when the case happened?”” Masako Yangshan asked. ” 

“””I’m 10 years younger than my sister. We don’t have the same mother,”” Kim said.””Back then, I was 

only 13 years old. I just started middle school …”” ” 

“””Then …”” Masako Yangshan asked again,””do you still remember anything from that time?”” ” 

“””It’s what I told the police.”” Kim lit a cigarette.””Before my sister was killed, I saw my sister dating a 

foreigner. She got out of the foreigner’s Black car, and the two of them looked very intimate …”” ” 

“””Oh?”” Zhao Yu and Masako looked at each other, and Masako asked,””is there a foreigner?”” ” 

“””Yes, aren’t you the police? Didn’t you see the file?”” “”Other than me, one of my sister’s classmates 

has seen it too …”” ” 

“””What did that foreigner look like?”” Masako Yangshan quickly recorded it in her notebook. ” 

“””I’ve only seen him once, and it was during sunset. I saw his back from afar,”” Kim recalled.””That 

foreigner had curly hair. He looked like an artist! ” 

“””He’s dressed decently, and the car he drives is very high-end. He should be quite rich!”” ” 

“””What size?”” Masako asked. ” 

“””Well, it’s quite tall. About 1.8 meters?”” “”I saw that my sister was very intimate with him, but she 

never mentioned it to her parents or her siblings …”” ” 

“””Then …”” Masako asked curiously,””didn’t the police investigate this foreigner at that time?”” ” 

“””You’re asking me,”” KIMM blew out a smoke ring.””The investigation should be the police’s job, 

right?”” I haven’t even said anything to you guys! ” 



“””My sister was killed so many years ago, what did the police do? The prosecution period should be 

over by now, right? Mom and dad are dead …”” ” 

“””If he’s really an artist …”” Masako muttered,””then this foreigner is really a big suspect?”” ” 

“Zhao Yu didn’t respond, but started to filter the information in his mind. ” 

“””Then … How long has this foreigner been dating your sister?”” Masako asked again,””when did you 

see the two of them together? Where is he?”” ” 

“””About a month before my sister was killed …”” Kim recalled.””The location was in a Park behind my 

apartment. It was under the shade of a tree! ” 

“””From the looks of it, the foreigner is probably sending my sister home …”” ” 

“””What kind of car?”” ” 

“””It’s a very high-end car. I can’t tell what brand it is,”” Kim said.””I was only a child back then. I didn’t 

even realize that my sister had left us forever …”” ” 

“””Didn’t the police ask you to draw a portrait of this foreigner?”” ” 

“””How can I draw it when I only see its back?”” “”I only know that he’s a foreigner, a white man. I don’t 

know anything else!”” ” 

“””Didn’t you say that there was another person who saw it?”” ” 

“””Yes, they were my sister’s classmates,”” Kim said.””They had just graduated back then and were 

doing a trial job at the same real estate company. By the way, the real estate company was also a 

foreign company. The police should have investigated it, but I don’t know if they found it!”” ” 

“””What about my previous question?”” Masako repeated,””your sister’s classmate, did he see it in 

more detail?”” ” 

“””Something like that,”” Kim said.””I saw it near my house, and she saw it from the company’s 

entrance. ” 

“””I thought about it later. What I saw was probably a foreigner picking up my sister, while what my 

classmates saw was a foreigner picking her up from work!”” ” 

“””So …”” Zhao Yu finally opened his mouth,””this foreigner might not have anything to do with the real 

estate company!”” ” 

“””That’s not necessarily true. “” “”It’s a very big company with many departments. They’re all in 

different places and different cities …”” ” 

“””Mm … Okay …”” Masako and Zhao Yu exchanged a look. Masako then asked,””other than this 

foreigner, is there any other special situation?”” ” 

“””Just say whatever you think of,”” Zhao Yu said.””Any detail can be the key to solving the case!”” ” 

“””Hmm …”” Kim thought about it carefully and said,””I don’t think there’s anything else. His sister was 

a very steady person, unlike other girls who were impetuous. ” 



“””My sister isn’t particularly beautiful, but she has a good temperament and a good figure. When she 

was in school, many boys pursued her, but my sister knew that those boys were just pursuing her 

physically, so she rejected them all … ” 

“””So, when I saw her being so intimate with a foreigner, I was a little surprised … ” 

“””I can see something different in my sister’s eyes. It’s a kind of expectation, a kind of yearning, or a 

kind of love!!”” ” 

“””Oh?”” Masako nodded and said,””you mean, your sister fell in love with that foreigner?”” ” 

“””I think so,”” Kim said.””I don’t have any special skills, but I’ve always been good at judging people. My 

sister is definitely in love …”” ” 

“””I think I’ve asked her about it, but she didn’t say anything. She just smiled sweetly …”” ” 

“After that, Masako opened up her Chatterbox and told him everything about her life in the past. ” 

The lecture went on for nearly half an hour before it ended. 

“””Alright then!”” Masako stood up and took out her name card.””In that case, let’s keep in touch. If you 

remember anything, remember to call me!”” ” 

“””Okay,”” Kim took out a name card, but he did not pass it to Masako, but to Zhao Yu.””Officer Yu, 

whenever you want to have some fun, remember to call me. We can discuss the price, I guarantee you’ll 

be satisfied …”” ” 

Zhao Yu looked at the seductive smile on Kim’s face and shivered. He immediately left the bar with 

Masako. 

“After they came out, the two of them went to Masako’s car. ” 

“””Regarding your accommodation tonight …”” Masako asked,””have you booked a hotel?”” Why don’t 

you … Come to my apartment? Although it’s a little small, it’s still big enough for two people!”” ” 

“””No, I’ve already booked one!”” Zhao Yu grinned. He didn’t expect Masako to be so open. ” 

“””Hehe,”” Masako laughed.””You’re not really thinking of calling Kimi, are you?”” If you really like her, I 

can introduce you to someone better!”” ” 

Zhao Yu was speechless. 

“””Let me remind you that Kim is 10 years younger than Xinjia from Ping Cheng. However, that was 10 

years old 29 years ago. She is already in her 40s this year. She just looks a little younger when she 

dresses up …”” ” 

“””I don’t need you to remind me,”” Zhao Yu said, wiping his sweat.””I don’t like this!”” Let’s get down 

to business, alright? We have to get the police file as soon as possible. This foreigner is obviously a big 

suspect, and the police must have investigated him back then!”” ” 

“””Mm … Don’t worry!”” Masako replied,””my friend has already spoken to the police. We’ll go to the 

police station tomorrow!”” ” 



“””Masako …”” At this time, Zhao Yu furrowed his eyebrows and asked,””is there really only one case 

similar to Ping Cheng’s Xinjia? ” 

“””After or before Xinjia in Ping Cheng, there has never been a similar case?”” ” 

 

Chapter 2595: Chapter 2591-irrefutable conflict 

 

“Late at night, Yunzhou police station, Special Investigation Group office. ” 

“””Team leader Miao,”” Ran Tao reported,””the search warrant has been completed, and the technical 

team is gathering. They will be able to finish the collection work tonight. ” 

“””The forensic Department is ready, too. We’ll try to get it out as soon as possible …”” ” 

“””Alright!”” Miao Ying said,””I’ll go to Zhang Shixiong’s house later. You can lead the team first, brother 

Tao!”” ” 

“””Yes!”” Ran Tao replied, turned around, and left. ” 

“””Cui,”” Miao Ying said to cui Lizhu,””according to the usual practice, since the suspect has been locked 

in, you are responsible for the investigation of the suspect’s interpersonal relationships and restoring 

Zhang Shixiong’s recent activities!”” ” 

“””Understood!”” Cui Lizhu nodded. ” 

“””Sis Wu is still interrogating him, Zeng ke …”” Miao Ying then said to Zeng ke,””you investigate all the 

information about Zhang Shixiong, and we’ll see what kind of person he is!”” ” 

Zeng ke made an OK gesture. 

“””Captain Shao,”” Miao Ying turned around and said to Captain Shao,””send someone to investigate 

something. Ask the person in charge of the hospital to see if there was any tranquilizer in the ambulance 

that Zhang Shixiong drove that night. ” 

“””No!”” She shook her head and said,””to make an adult unconscious in such a short time, it must be a 

strong anesthetic!”” ” 

“””Yes, but …”” Captain Shao said,””I just … Asked the two nurses!”” ” 

“””Oh?”” Miao Ying’s eyes lit up.””What did they say?”” ” 

“””They said …”” Captain Shao said,””there was no tranquilizer or anesthetic in the ambulance. At that 

time, they were working with a heart patient, and such a patient did not need to carry such drugs!”” ” 

“””Oh …”” Miao Ying nodded slightly and fell into deep thought. ” 

“””But …”” Captain Shao said,””after all, Zhang Shixiong has been doing emergency treatment for so 

many years, so he can come into contact with such drugs. Maybe he carried an anesthetic with him!”” ” 



“””I don’t think so?”” “”If Zhang Shixiong had an anesthetic with him, then it must have been 

premeditated,”” cui Lizhu interjected. ” 

“””I think …”” Captain Shao nodded and said,””this case should have been premeditated, right? 

Otherwise, how could we not find any clues at the crime scene in Chenyang residence?”” ” 

“””Isn’t there a day’s difference?”” Cui Lizhu said,””Zhang Shixiong kidnapped Zhang Qile and locked him 

up in his own house. Then, he used a day to prepare and go to Chenyang residence to commit the 

crime!”” ” 

“””Wait … The murderer had the key to open the morning sun residence and destroyed the surveillance 

system,”” Captain Shao retorted.””This was obviously carefully prepared. It couldn’t have been done in 

one day, right?”” ” 

“””Oh … But …”” Cui Lizhu said curiously.””That doesn’t seem to make sense.”” You see, if it was 

premeditated, then wouldn’t Zhang Shixiong be a God? ” 

“””How could he have predicted that Zhang Qile would appear at the place where the ambulance would 

pass by? ” 

“””Also, he just happened to come back from sending a patient, and the two nurses just got out of the 

car in advance?”” Cui Lizhu analyzed,””even if Zhang Shixiong had done something to Zhang Qile’s 

phone and could monitor everything about her, he couldn’t have predicted it so accurately, right?”” ” 

“””This …”” Captain Shao fell into deep thought. ” 

“At the same time, Miao Ying was frowning. Cui Lizhu’s analysis seemed to have returned to its original 

point, making it difficult for her to see through the murderer’s intentions. ” 

“””If that’s the case …”” Zeng ke said,””then there are only two possibilities. One is that Zhang Shixiong 

had his eyes on Zhang Qile for a long time, and he had already planned to kill him!”” ” 

“””He had been keeping an eye on Zhang Qile. That night, he saw Zhang Qile alone, and his own 

ambulance just happened to pass by, so he committed the crime!”” ” 

“””Or …”” Cui Lizhu shrugged her shoulders.””Let’s talk about another possibility! Isn’t there too much 

of a coincidence in this?”” ” 

“””The other possibility is that Zhang Qile was randomly selected by Zhang Shixiong!”” Zeng ke 

analyzed,””he was ready to kill someone and had been looking for a target! ” 

“””So, he just happened to meet Zhang Qile at that place, so he invited her into the car and then killed 

her!”” ” 

“””Something’s wrong!”” Miao Ying shook her head and said,””the latter is also impossible. If that’s the 

case, then there’s no way to explain why Zhang Qile would draw that red bathtub painting!”” ” 

“””Oh … That’s true …”” Cui Lizhu said.””Could it really be the first case? Is it really such a coincidence?”” 

” 



“””That’s not right,”” Captain Shao said.””If it was the first case, then there must be a reason for the 

killing. In other words, Zhang Shixiong must have known Zhang Qile? ” 

“””But …”” Captain Shao waved his palm, indicating that they had no relationship. ” 

“””Aiyo, I’m getting a headache!”” Cui Lizhu clapped her hands and said,””it’s still contradictory. How 

did this case work?”” Don’t … Arrest the wrong person again, okay? ” 

“””Could it be …”” Zeng ke continued to think and speculate,””there is someone else behind Zhang 

Shixiong?”” Zhang Shixiong was only following orders? ” 

“””Otherwise, why would he wait for a day? Since he was already prepared, why didn’t he make his 

move on the night he kidnapped Zhang Qile? ” 

“””I think that there must be a lot of news on the day he delayed it. We have to investigate it!”” ” 

“””Yes, yes …”” Cui Lizhu asked Captain Shao,””do you know what Zhang Shixiong did the day after the 

crime?”” ” 

“””Well …”” Captain Shao replied,””the two nurses said that Zhang Shixiong didn’t come to work the 

next day. It seemed that he had changed shifts with his colleagues!”” ” 

“””Change shifts?”” Cui Lizhu’s eyes widened.””If he changed shifts, he’ll be the prime suspect. He didn’t 

show up for a day. What did he do?”” Are you planning how to commit the crime?”” ” 

“””Yeah, in that case, he has no alibi,”” Zeng ke said.””He’s even more suspicious!”” ” 

“””I’m just asking if sis Wu has gotten this question from her interrogation. “” Miao Ying contacted Wu 

Xiumin, who was in front of them, then told everyone,””Zhang Shixiong said that he wanted to play 

games, so he changed shifts with his colleagues! ” 

“””On the day of the crime, he played games all day. At night, he felt too tired, so he went to bed early 

and didn’t go anywhere!”” ” 

“””Fine! That’s even more unclear!”” Cui Lizhu clapped her hands.””Isn’t this reason too deliberate?”” ” 

“””Alright, I’m done!”” Miao Ying said,””at the moment, Zhang Shixiong is only a suspect. It’s useless for 

us to make any more guesses! ” 

“””We still need to find more evidence. Everyone, please work hard!”” ” 

“Then, Miao Ying tidied up her documents and clothes, and walked out of the office. ” 

“Cui Lizhu followed him and asked,””””Sister Miao, are you going to Zhang Shixiong’s house now? Let’s 

go together. I also want to use his family’s things to clarify his interpersonal relationships. “” ” 

“””Alright!”” Miao Ying said,””but before that, I need to go to the autopsy Center!”” ” 

“””Autopsy Center?”” “”What for?”” cui Lizhu asked. ” 

“””I want to see the body again …”” Miao Ying said.””If Zhang Qile was attacked by Zhang Shixiong in the 

ambulance, shouldn’t there be any clues left behind?”” ” 



 

Chapter 2596: Chapter 2591-reappearance of the universe 

 

In a building in Tokyo in a remote and hidden room. 

“””Cough cough …”” Lee Bencheng coughed a few times, then looked at Zhao Yu’s phone and 

complained,””you should have asked someone to teach him some Korean!””” 

“””F * ck you,”” Zhao Yu cursed.””When he was in Eastern Europe, did you teach him Korean? You don’t 

have the right to criticize me. I’ve raised my godson quite well!””” 

“””Well …”” Lee Bencheng mumbled a few words of Korean and said quietly,””who asked you to save 

me, so I won’t argue with you!” 

“””However, I’ve only just figured out one thing. If you become my son’s Godfather, doesn’t that mean 

that old man Miao kun will be one generation older?” 

“””He … He’s become a God-grandfather?””” 

“””Hey?”” Zhao Yu frowned and said,””do you think you’re at a disadvantage? Do you know how much it 

costs for us to raise your child?” 

“””Besides, you have to spend a lot of money to hire the best bodyguards every day to ensure that the 

child is safe, and you still say that you’ve suffered a loss?””” 

“””…”” Lee Bencheng was speechless.” 

“””Hurry up and take out all your savings!”” Zhao Yu said,””if a biological father doesn’t even pay for the 

child support, is he still a biological father?””” 

“””I … Um …”” Lee Bencheng stammered for a while, then nodded and said,””wait … Wait for me to 

return to Seoul. Money is not a problem!” 

“””However, our top priority is to settle the matter of the successor!”” He pointed at the briefcase in 

front of Zhao Yu.””Take a look, it’s all about the sunflower case. I wonder if it’ll be of any use to you, a 

detective?””” 

“””F * ck …”” Zhao Yu was shocked. He quickly opened his briefcase and cursed,””why didn’t you say so 

earlier?””” 

“””Don’t worry,”” Lee Bencheng said,””I have to find someone to translate it, it’s still in Japanese!””” 

“Zhao Yu took out the document from his briefcase. Although he couldn’t read Japanese, he could 

quickly confirm that this was the police’s internal information based on the photos.” 

“””F * ck!”” Zhao Yu was shocked again. He touched the information and said,””this is the latest print. 

How did you do it?”” Did you hack the Yoto Police Department? He … He still managed to sneak in?””” 



“””You don’t need to know this,”” Lee Bencheng began to show off, and said with his head held high,””if 

I can’t help you with anything, why would I come to Tokyo with you? I’d have gone to see my son a long 

time ago …””” 

“””Alright then!”” Zhao Yu looked at the information that was written in Japanese and wondered if he 

should use an invisible translator to study it.” 

“””Zhao Yu, this case …”” Lee Bencheng pointed at the information and asked,””do you see anything? 

No matter how I look at it, it doesn’t seem to have anything to do with the successor!””” 

“””I found out today,”” Zhao Yu said.””The victim, Xin Jia from Ping Cheng, had contact with a 

mysterious foreigner. She was also working for an international real estate company at that time!” 

“””This foreigner and this company, there might be something fishy going on!””” 

“””I’m not particularly worried about other things,”” li Bencheng said,””what I’m most worried about is 

that Senior Sister tuo Qiang. What if she lies to us?” 

“””Even if it’s not to harm us, it won’t be good to delay the time, right?””” 

“””No!”” “”I saved Juliet’s life in mahazaya,”” Zhao Yu said with certainty.””I believe she wouldn’t lie to 

me!””” 

“””You …”” Lee Bencheng gave him a thumbs up,””are you the Savior of the world? We all owe you our 

lives!””” 

“””No!”” Zhao Yu said seriously,””my father-in-law owes me a few favors! Of course, if it weren’t for me, 

you would’ve been dead on the island …” 

“””Also, in corsovia, Jecca also owed me a big favor.” 

“””I won’t haggle over these small matters!””” 

“””…”” Lee Bencheng was speechless. This was the first time he had experienced Zhao Yu’s 

shamelessness.” 

“””If it wasn’t like this, we wouldn’t be in Tokyo now,”” Zhao Yu said, looking at the case 

information.””But, the feeling this case gives me is a little…Different!””” 

“””Oh?”” Lee Bencheng quickly asked,””what’s different?””” 

“””This case is too ordinary!”” Zhao Yu said,””it only happened in a small area. Successor, why do you 

want me to investigate this case?””” 

“””Yeah, this is something we can’t figure out,”” Lee Bencheng scratched his head and said,””if only that 

old man, Gu zhaoichiro, was still alive! He’s most interested in cold cases like this, so he might be able to 

provide us with some information!””” 

“””Masako Yangshan is Gu Zhao’s student,”” Zhao Yu said.””She’s the most suitable person!””” 

“””Oh …”” Lee Bencheng first nodded, then thought of something and asked Zhao Yu,””do you think this 

case is just one of the serial murders?” 



“””Are there any more similar cases?””” 

“””I’ve asked Masako this question before,”” Zhao Yu said.””At least in Tokyo or Japan there have been 

no similar cases! But … In other countries, that’s hard to say!””” 

“””You mean, it also happened in other countries?”” Li Bencheng guessed,””if that’s the case, then why 

don’t we … Check it out and find out?””” 

“””It’s not that easy to investigate,”” Zhao Yu said.””The world is so big, and it’s a case from decades 

ago. How can we investigate it?””” 

“””I have an idea,”” Lee Bencheng said,””at least, I can find out if there were any similar cases in Korea!” 

“””Look, the victim is a young girl. She wasn’t violated, and her left ear was cut off after her death. There 

might be sunflowers at the scene of death. There are so many characteristics …””” 

“””Oh …”” Zhao Yu grinned. He then remembered that the situation in Korea was different from his own 

country, so the case could still be investigated.” 

“However, in his own country, the number of cases piled up like a mountain, and it was hard to say 

when it came to investigation.” 

Then … 

“Thinking about this, Zhao Yu turned his attention to the system in his brain, trying to find a suitable 

device to see if the invisible browser could help him solve this problem.” 

“However, after he opened the system, he suddenly remembered something important.” 

Damn it! 

I … How did I forget to open a hexagram? 

“It turned out that, ever since the double Gen hexagram had ended, Zhao Yu had thought that the 

hexagram area had frozen, so he had not paid attention to it.” 

“But in fact, it had only been frozen for ten days, and it had long since thawed.” 

“He could have gotten a hexagram long ago when he was making a scene in Hawaii, but he had 

forgotten.” 

“Right now, in his current situation, he obviously needed a divination!” 

“Thinking of this, Zhao Yu didn’t hesitate, but quickly pressed the open hexagram button and opened a 

hexagram on the spot!” 

“In the end, there were only two big words on the hexagram:” 

“””Black Dragon kun!!!””” 

‘F * ck …’ 

“Zhao Yu wiped his sweat. After so many days, the universe appeared again!” 



“As soon as the universe was out, I was stunned …” 

“This hexagram was obviously not what Zhao Yu wanted the most. He was investigating a case, so even 

if it was a double Gen variant hexagram, it wouldn’t be a problem, but he had gotten a big Qian Kun 

hexagram!” 

This was enough to show that what he was about to encounter was a super big event … 

Why? 

Why? 

“Zhao Yu really didn’t understand. The sunflower case was just an ordinary unsolved case, so how could 

it have become such a big deal?” 

What kind of secret was hidden behind this case? 

 

Chapter 2597: Chapter 2592-increased suspicion 

 

“””Yes, many needle holes were found on the deceased’s body,”” Zhang Peipei said to Miao Ying in the 

autopsy Center.””It can be seen that the murderer injected the deceased multiple times!”” ” 

“””I’ve read the report before,”” Miao Ying said.””The murderer, is he very professional?”” ” 

“””Right!”” Zhang Peipei said,””these needle holes were all standard intravenous injections, and from 

the recovery of the needle holes, the murderer should have made accurate calculations!”” ” 

“””Oh?”” Miao Ying raised her eyebrows, obviously wanting to hear Zhang Peipei’s professional analysis. 

” 

“Zhang Peipei naturally knew Miao Ying, so she immediately explained,””We found a variety of 

anesthetic ingredients in the deceased’s body. There were traces of strong phennonynia, as well as 

eTOM, sodium sulfur, and so on … ” 

“””If these anesthetics were used inappropriately, it could cause the victim’s death, but the murderer 

accurately calculated the trick, which caused the victim to die from excessive blood loss. ” 

“””Also,”” Zhang Peipei added,””the strong anesthetic remains longer, and most of it has been absorbed 

by the human body. “”Therefore, we suspect that the murderer used a strong anesthetic in order to 

quickly subdue the victim! ” 

“””The other ordinary anesthetics were used to make the victim unable to resist …”” ” 

“””Then, judging from the remaining anesthetic,”” Miao Ying asked,””how long was the victim 

anesthetized?”” ” 

“””These anesthetics are basically used for surgery,”” Zhang Peipei said.””Even if all of them are added 

up, it’s impossible to keep the victims in a coma for 24 hours. During this period, they should wake up, 

but they might not be completely awake …”” ” 



“””Oh …”” Miao Ying nodded and said,””in that case, after the murderer caught Zhang Qile, he should 

have imprisoned her somewhere!”” ” 

“””Yes,”” Zhang Peipei said.””I just received the latest news. If the ambulance driver is the murderer, 

then Zhang Qile must have been imprisoned in his home!”” ” 

“””Peipei …”” Miao Ying said.””Let’s go to Zhang Shixiong’s house to check it out now. For safety’s sake, 

you should take your people to check it out too. I’m worried about the others …”” ” 

“””Okay,”” Zhang Peipei agreed.””I’m just getting ready!”” And the suspect’s car. If we can find Zhang 

Qile’s hair or skin tissue in the car, we can keep the suspect in the police station!”” ” 

“””Alright!”” Miao Ying said,””then we’ll be leaving first!”” ” 

“After that, Miao Ying and cui Lizhu left the autopsy Center and went to the parking lot. They were 

escorted by the local police officers to Chenggong Road. ” 

“On the way, Captain Shao, who was in the same police car, reported the latest situation to Miao Ying. ” 

“””Team leader Miao, according to the person in charge of chunjiang hospital, there was absolutely no 

anesthetic in the ambulance that Zhang Shixiong was in! ” 

“””If he really did knock Zhang Qile out in the car, then he must have brought the anesthetic with him!”” 

” 

“””Oh …”” Miao Ying said.””Just now, the forensic doctor told me that there were no obvious external 

injuries on Zhang Qile’s body, and even the traces of her being tied up were not particularly obvious. So, 

he might have injected her with a strong anesthetic while she was unprepared! ” 

“””The forensic doctor said that this strong anesthetic is very powerful and can cause a person to faint in 

less than ten seconds after injection …”” ” 

“””Well …”” Captain Shao said again,””the person in charge also said that strong anesthetics are 

controlled drugs. Not to mention Zhang Shixiong, even doctors are difficult to get. They are very strict 

with their management …”” ” 

“””That’s hard to say,”” cui Lizhu said.””The ambulance and the emergency department are together. 

The emergency department of big hospitals all have an emergency operating room. If there’s a surgery, 

there’s anesthesia. Zhang Shixiong is an acquaintance, so it’s easy for him to get some anesthesia. ” 

“””Don’t listen to the promises of these people in charge. There are still many loopholes. If Zhang 

Shixiong is smart enough and only steals a little at a time, who will find out?”” ” 

“””You …”” Captain Shao was speechless. ” 

“””Cui,”” Miao Ying was curious,””how do you know so much about it?”” ” 

“””I … Um …”” Cui Lizhu moved her lips close to Miao Ying’s ear and whispered,””I used to steal 

medicine from the hospital a lot. Emergency Medicine is the best to steal, because they use a lot of it 

every day, and it’s hard to manage. No one will find out after I steal it …”” ” 

“””You …”” This time, it was Miao Ying’s turn to be speechless. ” 



“””Then …”” Captain Shao swallowed his saliva.””I’ll go and check if chunjiang hospital has an 

emergency operating room!”” ” 

“””Captain Shao,”” Miao Ying quickly asked,””did you check with the hospital? Did Zhang Shixiong really 

change shifts?”” ” 

“””Yes, but …”” Captain Shao said,””after all, he was the driver of the ambulance. They usually don’t 

inform the leader when they change shifts, so the leader couldn’t remember it clearly. He had to verify it 

with other drivers later.”” ” 

“””It has been confirmed that on the day Zhang Qile was killed, Zhang Shixiong did not go to work! ” 

“””By the way, I almost forgot one of the most important things,”” Captain Shao said.””Although the 

person-in-charge doesn’t remember the change of shifts, he has an impression of the ambulance’s 

situation that day. ” 

“””He said that usually, after the driver drove the ambulance back, he had to change shifts, especially 

when he just transferred a critically ill patient to another hospital. The handover was more detailed. ” 

“””But, that day, Zhang Shixiong’s shift change was very perfunctory, and the signatures on the shift 

change form flew up like they were flying. It seemed that there was something urgent! ” 

“Zhang Shixiong replied that he had a team dungeon in the evening, so he was in a hurry to go back. ” 

“””So, after getting the news, we deliberately compared his shift change time,”” Captain Shao said.””A 

normal shift change should be around 18 minutes, but that day, he only used 11 minutes to leave the 

hospital in a hurry …”” ” 

“””If that’s the case …”” Miao Ying said to cui Lizhu.””Cui, inform sis Wu and ask her to focus on Zhang 

Shixiong’s team dungeon. Don’t underestimate that sentence. The murderer’s disguise is often seen 

through by a casual sentence!”” ” 

“””I understand, I understand!”” Cui Lizhu said,””we’ll ask his netizens if they cleared the instance with 

him that day! ” 

“””By the way, what game are they playing? League of Legends?”” ” 

“Upon hearing this, Captain Shao shook his head repeatedly, indicating that he knew nothing about 

playing games, and Zhang Shixiong’s leader also didn’t know. ” 

“””It doesn’t matter,”” Miao Ying said.””As for the game, you can just ask Zhang Shixiong! He’ll tell 

you!”” ” 

“””Alright!”” Then, cui Lizhu took out her phone and sent a message to Wu Xiumin. ” 

“At this time, Zeng ke called,”” ” 

“””Sister Miao, we just verified the two nurses”” testimony. Zhang Shixiong had indeed been dumped by 

his girlfriend a month ago! ” 

“””Her girlfriend works in a 4S shop and got together with a rich second-generation heir. She dumped 

Zhang Shixiong … ” 



“””And … Before we broke up, I made him a cuckold for almost half a year …”” ” 

“””F * ck, it can’t be?”” Cui Lizhu’s eyes widened in alarm.””Zhang Shixiong couldn’t have been triggered 

by this, that’s why … That’s why … But … Why didn’t he get even with his girlfriend?”” ” 

“””Why … Did you kill Zhang Qile?”” ” 

“””Zeng ke,”” Miao Ying thought of something and quickly ordered Zeng ke,””immediately confirm 

whether Zhang Shixiong’s girlfriend is safe now.”” ” 

 

Chapter 2598: Chapter 2593-similar case 

 

“Although the place he was staying at was safe, how could Zhao Yu sleep well?” 

“Especially after he opened the big heaven and earth hexagram, he was even more afraid.” 

“It was already late at night, but he was still analyzing the case with the information he had drawn on 

paper.” 

“The paper was marked with the words “”Van Gogh,””””sunflower,””””left ear,”” and so on. He had 

already searched it with the invisible browser, but after searching, it was all things that had nothing to 

do with the case.” 

“He didn’t know if the information he provided was not clear enough, or if the sunflower murder Tokyo 

was just the only one.” 

“In order to make it easier to read, he also used an invisible translator to translate the information 

provided by li Bencheng into words that he could understand.” 

“It had to be said that the information provided by Lee Bencheng was very detailed, and there were 

even signatures and stamps on the information. It was obviously from the police.” 

I really don’t know how he got it. 

“In the information, there was a detailed record of the sunflower Girl murder case that happened in 

Tokyo in 1991. To Zhao Yu’s surprise, the police actually found more than a hundred suspects, but after 

investigation, they were all ruled out!” 

Zhao Yu looked through the suspects but found no foreigner. The police did not find the foreigner that 

Masako had mentioned who had been intimate with the victim. 

“Then, Zhao Yu looked through all the testimonies, but he realized that no one had mentioned the 

foreigner.” 

Even Masako’s confession from Ping Cheng seemed to have been tampered with … 

How … How did this happen? 

Could it be that the police did this on purpose? 



“If Masako did not lie, then this mysterious foreigner was obviously the biggest suspect. But why did the 

police choose to turn a blind eye?” 

“Could it be that … This foreigner is so powerful that even though the police have confirmed that he is 

the murderer, they can’t arrest him because of his identity?” 

This … 

“At this point, Zhao Yu felt that the mysterious foreigner was very likely related to the successor. Could 

it be that the successor wanted to use him to find this person?” 

Who was this person? 

“If … The police had deliberately deleted this person’s information, then what should he do next?” 

“Should he find the police officer who investigated the case back then, or the senior police officer in 

charge of the case, and ask them what exactly was going on?” 

“Hence, Zhao Yu noted down the names of the police officers mentioned in the information, and 

planned to find these people later to ask them about the situation.” 

“Next, Zhao Yu wrote down the driver’s thoughts in his notebook, then spread out all the information 

and started to analyze the case again.” 

“As Zhao Yu closed his eyes, time seemed to have returned to Tokyo 29 years ago.” 

“The sunflowers were golden and dazzling, and they exuded a unique floral fragrance. Bees were flying, 

and birds were shuttling back and forth. It was a peaceful scene, but in this peaceful scene, there was a 

corpse lying in a pool of blood …” 

“The body was lying among the flowers. An ear was missing from the left cheek, and there were X-

shaped wounds on both hands. There were no signs of life when it was found.” 

Zhao Yu moved the map and saw that the sunflower field was only two to three hundred meters away 

from Xin Jia’s home in Ping Cheng. 

It was obvious that Xin Jia from Ping Cheng had met with misfortune on his way home. 

But … 

“After carefully reading through the dossiers, Zhao Yu found a small problem. I wonder if the police paid 

any attention to this problem back then?” 

“The sunflowers were located to the South of the residential area, while Xin Jia’s house was located to 

the Northwest. In other words, no matter where Xin Jia from Ping Cheng returned home, he would not 

pass by the sunflowers ‘field.” 

“In other words, after the murderer attacked Xin Jia of Ping Cheng, he had to drag the latter to the 

sunflower print. In this case, the distance of two to three hundred meters was not short!” 

Then … Wasn’t the murderer afraid of being discovered? 

“Although it was already very late, who knew if someone would have seen it?” 



Tsk tsk … 

“Zhao Yu realized that, although the information was detailed, it was not as detailed as he wanted.” 

“In particular, the exact location of the crime was not marked in detail.” 

“Back then, the sunflower field was not small, and its southernmost side was also connected to the 

country road. But the information didn’t indicate the exact location of the crime.” 

“If it was South, the murderer might have driven the victim here. But if it was North, the murderer might 

have dragged the victim from the residential area …” 

“From this, it seemed that he would have to put in a lot of effort to solve this case.” 

“Although it was a foreign case, this time it was obviously different from cossovia and Korea. This time, 

he did not have the support of the police or the help of special agents. It was just him and Lee Bencheng, 

so the difficulty level was obviously not small.” 

“Moreover, what they needed to solve this time was an unsolved case.” 

“Zhao Yu’s experience told him that sometimes, the more influential a case was, the easier it was to get 

some clues. Ordinary cases like the sunflower case would only be more difficult to investigate.” 

But … 

“Zhao Yu had always liked challenges. He looked at the two big words “”universe”” in his mind and 

became even more excited.” 

“He was wondering if his divination would mean that he would be able to find out about his successor 

through this case, and then …” 

“””Zhao Yu,””” 

“Just as Zhao Yu was thinking about this, his train of thought was suddenly interrupted by Lee 

Bencheng’s voice.” 

“””Damn, you scared me, big brother!”” “”I thought you were already asleep!”” Zhao Yu complained.” 

“””Hey, don’t call me big brother, okay? I’m only three years younger than Miao kun,”” li Bencheng 

clarified.””Although my son … Well … Okay, let’s not talk about our son!””” 

“””What’s wrong?”” Zhao Yu saw that Lee Bencheng was holding his phone, as if he had something 

urgent to say.” 

“””Oh,”” Lee Bencheng quickly placed his phone in front of Zhao Yu,””Zhao Yu, take a look. In July 1991, 

there was a murder in Seoul’s Kyeong-do. The victim was a young girl, and one of the girl’s ears was 

missing!””” 

“””Oh?”” Zhao Yu quickly took out his phone to check, and was shocked!” 

The corpse in the picture was almost the same as the one in the sunflower case in Tokyo. 



“””There,”” Lee Bencheng said,””there was a cut on his wrist and he died from excessive blood loss. His 

ear is also missing, although I don’t know which one it is …” 

“””However, the crime scene is different. This is a forest, and there is no field of sunflowers …””” 

“””July 1991 …”” Zhao Yu frowned and said incredulously,””the Tokyo sunflower case was in August 

1991. It’s only a month away!””” 

“””At that time, Seoul hadn’t even changed its name! “”Han city,”” Lee Bencheng said,””I found it in the 

library’s database!” 

“””If there’s no problem, then I’ll try to get you some police information, but the premise is that I can’t 

reveal my identity now,”” Lee Bencheng said,””I have to make a trip back to Seoul!””” 

“””No need,”” Zhao Yu said, waving his hand.””It’s easy. I only need one phone call to settle it! There are 

still people in Seoul who owe me a favor!””” 

 

Chapter 2599: Chapter 2594-unreliable fourth-generation only-son 

 

“””Sister Miao, please wait a little longer!”” Outside an old house on Chenggong Road, Zhang Peipei, the 

forensic doctor, said to Miao Ying,””we haven’t found any suspicious traces so far. The more that is the 

case, the more we need to examine them in detail!”” ” 

“””Understood!”” Miao Ying raised her head and looked into the room, then said to Zhang Peipei,””go 

and do your work! If you find anything suspicious, remember to let me know …”” ” 

Zhang Peipei made an OK gesture and turned around to go into the house. 

“””Wow,”” cui Lizhu said.””I got up early to go to the evening show, but I can’t get in!”” ” 

“””Zhang Peipei is right,”” Miao Ying said.””The more the crime scene looks fine, the more detailed the 

search needs to be. In my opinion, if we don’t find any obvious problems within an hour or two, we 

won’t be able to go in!”” ” 

“””Team leader Miao,”” Captain Shao reported to Miao Ying,””we’ve found the car. It’s a Ford Ferris. It’s 

parked in the middle of the alley.”” ” 

“””Oh,”” Miao Ying nodded,””then send someone to search, especially the trunk …”” ” 

“””Understood!”” Captain Shao immediately made arrangements. ” 

“””This place …”” Cui Lizhu observed the environment for a moment.””Except for a few old buildings, 

most of the buildings are single-story houses. There shouldn’t be many people living here, right?”” ” 

“””I didn’t expect that there would be such an old place in a developed city like Yunzhou!”” ” 

“””You can’t say that,”” at this time, an assistant of the local police said.””You don’t know, the road to 

success has a long history. Thinking back, this place was full of Fujia and was the most prosperous place 

in Yunzhou city. ” 



“””Before the liberation, anyone who could have a house here would be amazing!”” The young police 

officer pointed into the distance and said,””look, Chenyang residence is in the distance. To the East is 

the fu family mansion, and to the South is the Cheng family’s archway. All the rich families live here!”” ” 

“””Is that so?”” ” 

Cui Lizhu took a closer look at Zhang Shixiong’s house. It was a very small two-story building with a 

western style. It was really quite old. 

“””There has been a project for demolition and reconstruction here for a long time, but …”” The young 

police officer continued,””because there are many old buildings here, many houses whose ownership 

can not be confirmed, and houses with disputes, so it was fruitless in the end. ” 

“””In my opinion,”” the young police officer looked at Zhang Shixiong’s two-story building and 

said,””this building should also have a long history, right?”” ” 

“””Mm …”” Miao Ying looked at her phone and said,””Zhang Shixiong has already told me about the 

origin of this house. He said that his great-grandfather was a wealthy family in Yunzhou city and had a 

large mansion here! ” 

“””After that, they split up. Zhang Shixiong’s grandfather was assigned to this small building that only 

occupies 40 square meters …”” ” 

“””Wait, don’t mess around!”” Cui Lizhu waved her hand and said,””didn’t Zhang Shixiong say that his 

father was the only son for three generations? His mother was an only child, so he only had one aunt? ” 

“””Including himself, he has only one son for four generations. If that’s the case, his great-grandfather 

will only have one son, so what’s the point of splitting the family property? Are you bullying us because 

we don’t know how to count?”” ” 

“””No,”” Miao Ying said.””Actually, his grandfather is an illegitimate child. That’s why he said that …”” ” 

“Cui Lizhu had a headache. “”What the hell is this?”” she asked. ” 

“””This small building used to be a servant’s room of the Zhang family. Later, the Zhang family’s 

courtyard was destroyed, and only this building remained …”” ” 

“””Hey? Is this a blessing in disguise?”” Cui Lizhu grinned. ” 

“””But, because there was no way to confirm the ownership of this house, it couldn’t be traded,”” Miao 

Ying said.””Zhang Shixiong’s grandfather really wanted to sell it, but he couldn’t trade it. ” 

“””Later, when his grandparents passed away, the house was simply left to Zhang Shixiong’s aunt, Zhang 

Fengyi! ” 

“””Zhang Fengyi suffered from a disease since she was a child. She was unmarried and passed away in 

1994 when she was only 34 years old! Zhang Shixiong was born in 1993. He was only one year old at that 

time, so he doesn’t have any impression of aunt …”” ” 

“””Wow,”” cui Lizhu sighed,”” 34 years old, what a pity!”” But … If I give the house to my aunt, will 

Zhang Shixiong’s parents have any objections?”” ” 



“””No,”” Miao Ying said.””Zhang Shixiong said that his parents were both educators. They sold the 

house and bought a big house in the flat peach area!”” ” 

“””Oh …”” ” 

“””But,”” Miao Ying said,””although his aunt died, the house still couldn’t be traded. His parents tried 

many ways, but they couldn’t complete the real estate procedures. In the end, they could only wait for 

the demolition! ” 

“””Seven years ago, Zhang Shixiong moved here because of work and lived alone. He only went back to 

accompany his parents on holidays …”” ” 

“””My aunt passed away in 1994,”” cui Lizhu said.””Zhang Shixiong moved in seven years ago. What 

about the 19 years in between?”” In these 19 years, has the house been rented out?”” ” 

“””That was their plan at first, but the old couple are honest people. They were worried that they would 

get into trouble if they didn’t have the qualifications, so they didn’t rent the house.”” Miao Ying said,””in 

the past 19 years, the old couple would come here to clean and repair from time to time. They just 

hoped that this place could be demolished as soon as possible so that Zhang Shixiong could get a new 

wedding House …”” ” 

“””Oh … I see!”” Cui Lizhu sighed.””So, Zhang Shixiong’s family is quite well-off!”” It would be a pity if he 

was the red bathtub killer! ” 

“””But then again, it’s still possible for him to kill someone because he was out of love. Even if he killed 

Zhang Qile, who he didn’t know, he killed her using the red bathtub method. ” 

“””Sister Miao,”” cui Lizhu asked,””is there any sign of that kid confessing?”” You’re still so tight-

lipped?”” ” 

“””Mm …”” Miao Ying nodded.””Or, he’s innocent! Or, he calculated it so that we can’t find any 

evidence and can’t do anything to him!”” ” 

“””I don’t think so. I don’t believe that detective technology is so advanced these days,”” cui Lizhu said, 

pointing to the collection personnel working in the room.””He kidnapped and killed a living person, so 

there shouldn’t be any evidence left!”” ” 

“””Come on, little cui!”” Miao Ying patted cui Lizhu’s shoulder.””The night is long, and we still have to 

wait for a long time. Why don’t we go to Chenyang residence?”” ” 

“””Ah?”” Cui Lizhu was stunned for a moment, then understood that Miao Ying wanted to survey the 

route to see if Zhang Shixiong could go to Chenyang residence that night. ” 

“””Alright!”” ” 

“Thus, the two of them walked in the direction of Chenyang residence. ” 

“The roads here were crisscrossed, and although they were slightly narrow, they were wide enough for a 

car to pass through. ” 



“Miao Ying and cui Lizhu observed the route and terrain as they walked. After a while, they came to a 

spacious alley. ” 

Further down this alley was the place where Chenyang lived. 

“””Sister Miao,”” cui Lizhu said, pointing to the cars parked in the alley.””There are so many cars here. Is 

there no one that can record this?”” ” 

“””No,”” Miao Ying shook her head and said,””Tao told me that although all the cars here are equipped 

with dashcam devices, they are all cheap ones. They can only record the car’s movements after it starts, 

and will stop working after the engine is turned off!”” ” 

“””What bad luck,”” cui Lizhu said regretfully.””It seems that the rich don’t live here. If it was a BMW or 

a Mercedes-Benz, maybe we could get a recording!”” ” 

“””Well,”” Miao Ying said,””maybe Zhang Shixiong knew this, so he dared to start from Chenyang 

residence? ” 

“””I’m thinking that the reason why Zhang Shixiong worked so hard was to divert the police’s attention. 

Logically speaking, Zhang Qile died in the red bathtub in Chenyang residence. It should be very difficult 

for us to find out that he was the culprit, right?”” ” 

“””Mm … Yes!”” Cui Lizhu thought for a moment and said,””if Zhang Shixiong is the murderer, his 

thinking is really strange. I’m really curious. Is there any relationship between him and Zhang Qile?”” ” 

 

Chapter 2600: International serial murder? 

 

“Tokyo, 8 am. ” 

“””What?”” Masako Yangshan’s strange voice came from the phone.””You … Aren’t going to the police 

station with me? Then … Where are you going?”” ” 

“””Masako,”” Zhao Yu said,””I have an urgent matter to attend to. Please help me get the information 

from the police. I’ll see you at noon!”” ” 

“””This … Alright,”” Masako said,””then let’s keep in touch! Great detective Zhao, I’ve already applied 

for an album, you can’t give up halfway!”” ” 

“””Don’t worry!”” Zhao Yu said,””I’m here for this case. Don’t worry, we’ll contact each other at noon. 

Book a place, my treat!”” ” 

“””Alright!”” ” 

“After agreeing, Masako hung up the phone. ” 

“””Here,”” li Bencheng’s voice sounded in Zhao Yu’s ear,””this is the bulletproof vest that I kept in the 

safe house. Although it’s not the latest model, it’s just in case!”” ” 



“””Oh …”” Zhao Yu looked at the bulletproof vest that li Bencheng handed over. It looked like a small 

waistcoat, but it was more delicate. ” 

“””And this …”” Then, Lee Bencheng handed Zhao Yu a pistol,””because this safe house has not been 

used for a long time, there are only two pistols. Let’s take one each!”” ” 

“””Well …”” Zhao Yu asked,””we’re going to find a retired police officer with a gun. Is that 

appropriate?”” ” 

“””Yes,”” Lee Bencheng snapped his fingers and handed a document to Zhao Yu,””here, this is the secret 

search division’s document, which is equivalent to your country’s gun license!”” ” 

Zhao Yu took a look and saw his photo on the ID. It seemed that Lee Bencheng had prepared everything. 

“””Old Li, I heard that you special agents also have a license to kill. Is that true?”” Zhao Yu asked casually 

as he arranged his gun. ” 

“””Hehe,”” Lee Bencheng laughed lightly,””you’ve seen too much 007, haven’t you? He had a license to 

kill! I also have …”” ” 

“Zhao Yu was speechless for two seconds.””Don’t you think there’s a contradiction in your words? Are 

you playing with me again?”” ” 

“””Although I’m also very serious, I really don’t like to work with detectives,”” Lee Bencheng 

grumbled,””because you will always have endless questions. You’d better not try to trick me. If you piss 

me off, even The Godfather of your son won’t do! Not even our Savior!”” ” 

“””F * ck your mother,”” Zhao Yu scolded.””Who the hell is trying to get information from you? don’t 

think too much!”” ” 

“””What I actually want to say is, why don’t we get some taser guns or other non-lethal weapons?”” 

Zhao Yu pointed at the gun and said,””I’m a peace-loving, righteous man. I wouldn’t do something like 

this!”” ” 

“””Ah Xi …”” Lee Bencheng was not to be outdone,””Zhao Yu, don’t think that I don’t know, just from 

your battle in Vakra, you killed more people than I have ever killed in my life. What are you pretending 

for!”” ” 

“””I … Um …”” Zhao Yu had nothing else to say, so he could only say,””let me correct your grammar 

mistake. A pig’s nose with scallions is an act, but a Daffodil that doesn’t bloom is an act! Or you can say 

that he didn’t smoke it for fun …”” ” 

“””You’re too talkative.”” Lee Bencheng shook his head helplessly.””I regret letting my son follow you 

…”” ” 

“””Okay, let’s not flirt anymore,”” Zhao Yu said.””Don’t forget that this is not our territory. Isn’t it a bit 

too much to bring so many things?”” ” 

“””You see, we have been Tokyo for a day, but we haven’t found anyone following us, have we?”” ” 



“””No!”” Lee Bencheng pulled the bolt and squinted his eyes,””there will always be a moment of peace 

before the storm! After so many years, my premonition has always been accurate. I think we should be 

more careful!”” ” 

“””Alright, you’re the king of special agents. Whatever you say!”” Although Zhao Yu said that, he was 

actually quite impressed. ” 

“In fact, Zhao Yu was already prepared to face the storm. After all, he had gotten a big Qian Kun 

hexagram. If nothing big happened, it would be inexcusable. ” 

“However, Zhao Yu’s preparation method was different from li Bencheng ‘S. He had checked his 

emergency device bar early in the morning, and had prepared all the commonly used devices. ” 

“Although he had spent more than 20000 points in Hawaii, his points had increased a lot after he had 

caused a scene in Hawaii. Now, his total points were around 290000. ” 

These points were enough for him to continue to use! 

“””Here, this is the address,”” Lee Bencheng said,””Officer Sato is now living in a villa in Shibuya district, 

Tokyo. I have seen the villa’s map before, and there is a swimming pool on the balcony!”” ” 

“””Yeah?”” “”Oh?”” Zhao Yu was surprised.””In Tokyo, is the police officer’s pension this high?”” ” 

“””Of course not,”” Lee Bencheng laughed,””Officer Sato resigned and went to sea after he became the 

Section Chief. His villa was earned from his business!”” ” 

“””Oh …”” Zhao Yu said.””On the case file, he had the most signatures. Although he wasn’t the 

supervisor, he must know the details of the case, and also know who the foreigner who was not 

recorded in the last case was!”” ” 

“””Same old rules,”” Lee Bencheng said,””you go by yourself, I will protect you in secret!”” ” 

“As they spoke, the two of them had already left the safe house and arrived at the corridor outside. ” 

“””I …”” Zhao Yu asked,””Shibuya is quite far from here. Should I take a taxi?”” ” 

“””If you want to save money, you can take the subway …”” Lee Bencheng pressed the communication 

device on his ear, meaning to let Zhao Yu keep in touch. ” 

“Then, Lee Bencheng turned and left, disappearing without a trace. ” 

This old man Li just loved to act mysterious … 

“Zhao Yu cursed a few times, then walked out of the corridor and came to the bustling Street. ” 

“He wasn’t short of money, so of course, he wouldn’t take the subway. He directly hailed a taxi and 

went straight to his destination … ” 

Hu … 

“After getting into the car, Zhao Yu was a little nervous and panted a few times. ” 



He looked around and did not find any trace of li Bencheng. The invisible detector also could not detect 

his information. 

This guy … 

Zhao Yu had a strange feeling in his heart. He felt that it was not bad to have such an expert following 

him. 

Buzz … Buzz … 

“At that moment, his phone suddenly vibrated. ” 

“This mobile phone was given to Zhao Yu by Lee Bencheng, who said that it could avoid tracking and 

positioning, and was absolutely safe. ” 

“””Apseou,”” a woman’s voice came from the other end of the phone, speaking Korean.””Zhao Yu, I’ve 

found the case you asked me to investigate. There was indeed a girl’s murder case in the capital! ” 

“””This case has not been solved yet …”” ” 

“””Miss Zhen Zhu,”” Zhao Yu asked,””is it certain that this case happened in July of 1991? Ear … Which 

ear is that?”” ” 

It turned out that the woman on the phone was police officer li Zhulu from Seoul. 

“””Right! “”It was July, July 21st,”” Miss Pearl said.””The victim was only 17 years old and was still a high 

school student. There were no signs of violation. Ear … Ear is the left ear!”” ” 

“””Thanks!”” Zhao Yu said excitedly,””then please send me the electronic file!”” ” 

“””No problem, but it’s all in Korean … Oh …”” Miss Zhen Zhu thought of something and muttered,””I 

forgot that you can understand Korean! ” 

“””Wait, I’ll send it to you immediately!”” ” 

“””Thank you, thank you. I’ll treat you to some barbecue later!”” Zhao Yu said politely. ” 

“””That’s great. I really hope to see you,”” miss Zhen Zhu said with a smile.””If this case is important and 

you need any help, just let me know!”” ” 

“””No problem … Hmm …”” He said. ” 

“As they were talking, Zhao Yu had already seen the case file. When he opened the first page of the case 

file, he saw a photo of the crime scene. ” 

“In the end, Zhao Yu saw at a glance that there was a yellow flower petal on the victim’s body. ” 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 


